STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from Williamsburg County

George C. James, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

THE STATE,

RESPONDENT,

V.

ARTHUR MOSELEY,

APPELLANT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2014-000199

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

LANELLE CANTEY DURANT
Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense
PO Box 11589
Columbia, SC 29211-1589
(803) 734-1343

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. Did the trial court err in allowing Appellant Moseley, who had a history of mental illness, to represent himself in his murder trial when the judge conducted a very inadequate Faretta¹ questioning after the judge suggested that Appellant Moseley could represent himself and continued to emphasize that Moseley had a constitutional right to represent himself after Moseley said he couldn't because it was a murder case?

2. Did the trial court err in denying Appellant's motion to dismiss based on the violation of his Sixth Amendment constitutional right to a speedy trial when the incident occurred in 2001, thirteen years before he went to trial, and eight years after his arrest in 2006?

¹ Faretta v. California, 422 U.S. 806 (1975).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On July 9, 2007, The Williamsburg County Grand Jury indicted Arthur Moseley and co-defendants, Corey Liner and Steve Durant, on the charges of murder, attempted armed robbery, and criminal conspiracy. Moseley and Durant were also indicted on the possession of a weapon during a violent crime. On January 21, 2014, Moseley appeared before the Honorable Clifton B. Newman for a pretrial motions hearing. Moseley was represented by Deborah J. Butcher, and the state was represented by Kimberly V. Barr. R. 1. On January 27, 28, and 31, 2014, Appellant Moseley and Liner proceeded to trial before the Honorable George James and a jury on the charges as indicted.² Moseley proceeded *pro se*; Liner was represented by Legrand Carraway. The state was represented by Kimberly V. Barr and Tyler B. Brown. R. 1. At the close of the state's case, Liner entered a guilty plea to attempted armed robbery and criminal conspiracy. R. 345, ll. 20 – R. 346, ll. 25. The jury returned verdicts of guilty on the four charges for Moseley. R. 597, ll. 3 – 22. Judge James sentenced Moseley to fifty years on the murder charge; twenty years on the attempted armed robbery; five years on the gun charge; and five years on the criminal conspiracy charge. R. 610, ll. 6 –R. 611, ll. 10. Moseley filed a notice of appeal. This appeal follows.

² The solicitor reported that Steve Durant was deceased by the time of trial. Supp. R 1, ll. 10 – 18.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On March 23, 2001, twenty-two year old Tory York, was shot to death in his own yard. The word on the street was that York had stolen half a kilogram of cocaine and money from David Brockington, and that York was killed because of this. R. 397, ll. 3 – R. 399, ll. 3.

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) conducted a drug investigation of this case and the murder from 2003-2006. FBI Agent Vince Flamini had a statement from Arlo Fulton who allegedly saw Brockington pay Steve Singletary \$400 to \$600 to kill Tory York. R. 400, ll. 6 – R. 404, ll. 25. However, the investigation concluded that Singletary not involved in the murder. The case was a cold case until 2006. R. 409, ll. 1 – 8.

In 2003, Agent Flamini received information from ATF that he should talk to Lonnie Dozier about this murder which he did. It was not known who was involved in the murder until Dozier gave a statement to Agent Flamini on August 7, 2003 that Dozier, Liner and Moseley were involved. They heard that York had stolen the drugs and money and the plan was to rob him. Durant provided the gun but did not go with them. The agent did not feel, due to a sense of equity, that Dozier should be charged with this murder since he cooperated. Dozier's sentence for robbery was reduced due to his cooperation in another murder. R. 409, ll. 7- R. 423, ll. 15.

The FBI officially changed the focus of the investigation in March 2005 to Moseley, Liner, and Dozier. The Kingstree Police Department knew of Dozier's interview and had the names of Moseley, Liner and Dozier in 2003 as soon as Agent Flamini interviewed Dozier. The state could still have proceeded with prosecution as the state was under no obligation to the Feds. R. 421, ll. 9 –R. 427, ll. 8.

Lonnie Dozier testified for the state. His story was that he was granted immunity from prosecution of this murder because he cooperated. Agent Flamini told him that the information he provided about York's murder could not be used against him. Dozier told Agent Flamini that he, Moseley, and Liner were all present at the killing of York. R. 133, ll. 1 – R. 134, ll. 20.

Dozier's details were that the three of them met at Steve Durant's house. Durant told them about York's robbing "Little D" of drugs. Durant gave a gun to Liner and then the three of them went to York's house to rob him. When they arrived, Liner, who was the driver, was talking to York while all three of them were still in the car. Moseley picked up the gun from the center armrest, and walked around the front of the car. Moseley shot York several times. Dozier and Liner were shocked because shooting York was not part of the plan. R. 113, ll. 1 – R. 134, ll. 20.

Shannon Coker was an investigator with the Williamsburg Sheriff's Department. He went to the scene and recovered a .38 bullet from the house next door. It was sent to SLED. There were no non-participant eyewitnesses to the crime, and it went unsolved for many years. They received word of Moseley's involvement from the FBI in 2006. R. 227, ll.- R. 237, ll. 18.

Investigator Coker testified that Dozier was granted immunity from prosecution on giving the information he provided. R. 266, ll. 13 –R. 267, ll. 2.

The firearm experts from SLED, Vello Paavel, reported that no firearm was ever submitted for testing. The bullet was too damaged to tell what kind of firearm fired it. R. 268, ll. 23 – R. 271, ll. 16; R. 278, ll. 15 –R. 284, ll. 25.

At the pretrial hearing held January 21, 2014, one week before the trial, Moseley's attorney, Debra Butcher, asked the judge for a continuance. She explained that she was appointed in July 2013, and a mental evaluation was pending that she had to wait to be completed which was done November 27. The case was a cold case from 2001 so she obtained funding for an investigator after the evaluation was completed and she knew they were going forward. She did not have enough time to fully investigate the issues. There was an eyewitness she was trying to track down. Her client deserved more time for the investigation to be completed. R. 3, ll. 1 – R. 4, ll. 10.

Trial counsel then moved to be relieved because Moseley had filed a grievance against her with the Office of Disciplinary Counsel. He wanted her to make motions that she felt were not "ripe." R. 4, ll 12 – 20.

Moseley told the judge that he had a motion to dismiss because his right to a speedy trial was being violated. The judge told him that he would have to ask the judge the next week who was presiding at his trial to rule on his motion to dismiss. R. 4, ll. 20 – R. 6, ll. 22; R. 25, ll. 18 – R. 26, ll. 9.

The solicitor said the case was first called for trial in 2007 when Attorney Verdell Barr was Moseley's attorney. At that time, Attorney Barr asked for a continuance. Rule 5 disclosure of forty-two documents was made in October 2007 to Mr. Barr. Mr. Barr asked to be relieved in October 2012 but died thereafter. Attorney Amanda Shuler of the Public Defender's Office was appointed then. The solicitor "believed" Mr. Barr gave the discovery to Ms. Shuler. When Ms. Butcher was appointed in July 2013 to represent Moseley, the solicitor "assumed" Ms. Shuler gave the discovery to Ms. Butcher. R. 6, ll. 24 – R. 12, ll. 21.

The solicitor stated that bench warrants were issued against Moseley for failure to appear several times. He was picked up the end of 2012. Moseley argued that he was at his home in White Oak and did not know of bench warrants. R. 11, ll. 1 – R. 13, ll. 14.

Moseley argued to the court that he was entitled to pretrial motions and his attorney had not done any motions. The judge then asked:

Court: Do you want to represent yourself?

Moseley: I can't represent my self because this is a murder charge, sir.

Court: Well, you can. You have a constitutional right to represent yourself if you want to represent yourself. You've been given three now, three lawyers. You're not —

Moseley: I paid----

Court: satisfied with any of them?

Moseley: for my first lawyer, sir. I wasn't given Verdell Barr.

R.13, ll. 25 – R. 14, ll. 10.

Moseley said his Fourteenth Amendment rights were being violated because no pretrial motions were being filed. The judge told him if he wanted to be represented by counsel, to tell him. Moseley said he would represent himself. R. 13, ll. 15 - R. 16, ll. 25.

The judge then placed Moseley under oath and proceeded to determine if he was competent to represent himself. The state reported that Moseley was evaluated by the Department of Mental Health on August 28, 2013 by Dr. Kimberly Harrison. Her opinion was that he competent to stand trial. He was also evaluated for criminal responsibility on the same date and was found to be responsible. The report did not make a finding that he was competent to stand trial which was then left to this judge. The report indicated that Moseley

had been receiving disability for mental health issues. He had several head injuries and a stroke. He was diagnosed as being bi-polar and schizophrenic with addiction problems.

Moseley told the judge that he had represented himself in two civil cases. When asked, he said he was familiar with the rules of criminal procedure and evidence. The judge asked if he ever been treated for mental illness or abuse of drugs. Moseley said yes. He presented the judge with documents showing hospitalizations. When asked if Moseley thought he was competent to stand trial, he said that he pled the Fifth on that. The judge found that Moseley was competent to stand trial. R. 17, ll. 1 – R. 31, ll. 25.

Moseley told the judge that he watched “Law and Order” television programs. The judge warned Moseley about the dangers of self-representation, and asked him again. Moseley said he would represent himself. He said none of the attorneys cared about his rights, and he had to put his life in his own hands. Nobody was going to get money off of railroading him. They had gotten enough money already. R. 41, ll. 14 – ll. 24. The judge then made a finding that Moseley knowingly and voluntarily waived his right to counsel and the trial would proceed the next week as scheduled. The judge appointed Ms. Butcher as standby counsel during the trial. R. 32, ll. 1 – R. 42, ll. 25.

In pretrial motions hearing at the beginning of the trial before Judge James, Moseley made his motion to dismiss for a violation of his right to a speedy trial. He argued that his constitutional rights under the Fifth and Sixth Amendments were violated for lack of speedy prosecution. He tried to file a motion for a speedy trial in April 2013 but was denied access due to his attorney at the time. He filed a speedy trial motion several years before when he had a prior counsel. He argued that it had been eight years since he was arrested. R. 56, ll. 8 – R. 58, ll. 18; R. 61, ll. 15 – R. 62, ll. 16.

Moseley filed a motion to dismiss July 3, 2013. R. 63, ll. 21 – R. 65, ll. 6. he again argued to the judge that his case should be dismissed because it was not tried in a speedy fashion. R. 67, ll. 1 – 25. His right had been violated by presumptive prejudice. He was arrested January 31, 2006 and indicted July 2007. The solicitor could not explain the delay of the first five years except that the investigation focused on another person named Steve “Rab” Singletary. It was determined by the FBI investigation that Moseley was the guilty party. R. 68, ll. 1 – R. 69, ll. 19.

Moseley named two witnesses who saw Tony York, brother of the deceased Tory York, with blood on his shirt and with lots of drugs on the night of the murder. This was in a statement the witness gave to the FBI in March 2002. She was the driver when they stole the drugs from Brockington. There was another witness, Andy White who was the cousin of the victim, who also saw Tony York with blood on his shirt because he asked Andy White for another shirt. R. 59, ll. 1 – 19.

When the judge asked the solicitor about this exculpatory evidence, she confirmed what Moseley had presented which came out during the FBI investigation. She did not know where Tony York was. He could be local. The solicitor had had no contact with the witness who saw Tony York with blood on his shirt. Moseley said her name was Keisha Burgess. R. 71, ll. 1 – R. 73, ll. 7.

The solicitor stated the case was first called for trial November 2, 2007 after she had delivered the discovery under Rule 5 to Attorney Verdell Barr. The case was continued then at the request of defense counsel Barr. Bench warrants were issued for Moseley in 2007, 2008, 2009, and 2010. He was picked up at his home or a relative’s home in December 2012 or January 2013. R. 73, ll. 1 – R. 74, ll. 14.

Moseley had written the solicitor about the state's failure to comply with the request for a speedy trial. One reason was the failure for him to be evaluated for competency and criminal responsibility. The solicitor said he was evaluated August 28, 2013 and was found competent. She told of the hearing before Judge Newman the previous week where Judge Newman found Moseley to competent and criminally responsible. Judge Newman also found him capable of representing himself. R. 74, ll. 16 – R. 76, ll. 11.

Moseley argued that he never consented to the continuance in 2007 that Attorney Barr requested. He knew of only one bench warrant issued October 29, 2012. He was in the psychiatric ward of Carolina Hospital in October 2012, and transferred to MUSC in November. The judge denied Moseley's motions. R. 81, ll. 12 – R. 88, ll. 5.

Moseley told the court that he had to represent himself in order for his motions to be heard. He needed documents from Belmont Psychiatric Hospital in Philadelphia indicating that he was there at the time of this crime. His standby counsel, who was his most recent attorney, had sent subpoenas to Belmont without a response. The solicitor reported that the competency evaluation report indicated that DMH was unable to get the documents from Belmont because they were in outside storage. R. 188, ll. 4 – R. 193, ll. 5.

The judge then said to the solicitor:

Well, if there are records, Ms. Barr, that show he was in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, at the time in question, March 23, 2001, wouldn't the state want those, too, to accomplish some sense of justice?

R. 193, ll. 6 – 10.

Moseley wanted to present alibi witnesses which included his parents, his former girlfriend, and other witnesses from the federal documents regarding third parties who had information about other suspicious people. He sent those names to the solicitor on the first

day of trial. The solicitor argued that she was entitled to proper notice as stated in the rule or at least ten days before trial. Moseley said he did not know of any such rule. When asked, he said he did not designate them as alibi witnesses as he did not know he should do that. The judge asked if he had his girlfriend, Ms. Britt, subpoenaed. Moseley said no as it depended on them. The judge told him that the state would not issue a subpoena for him. R. 179, ll. 14 – R. 194, ll. 10. Moseley then asked;

So you saying for all these people I want witnesses to, I need a subpoena for them?

R. 194, ll. 20 – 21.

The judge said yes. R. 194, ll. 22. His mother and stepfather were allowed to testify that they thought he was in Philadelphia during the murder, but were not absolutely. R. 374, ll. 18 – R. 387, ll. 17; R. 447, ll. 1 – R. 449, ll. 14.

FBI Agent, Vince Flamini, testified for the defense. When he started to present statements from witnesses he talked to during the FBI investigation, the state objected as hearsay. An in camera hearing was held where Agent Flamini presented the statements of several witnesses. One was from Steve Durant, now deceased who denied giving a gun to any of the defendants. R. 388, ll. 1- R. 395, ll. 24.

Another witness was Arlo Fulton who told Agent Flamini on March 20, 2002, that he saw David Brockington pay Steve Singletary \$400 to \$600 to kill Tory York. R. 397, ll. 1 – R. 404, ll. 25.

The witness, Don Burgess, told Agent Flamini that Keisha Burgess told him that after the murder, she saw Tony York with blood on his shirt and with lots of drugs. R. 412, ll. 7 – R. 413, ll. 16.

The witness, Ferrell Shaw, told Agent Flamini, that Singletary admitted to Shaw that he killed Tory York and Brockington still owed him money. R. 413, ll. 19 – R. 414, ll. 14.

Moseley told the judge that he wanted to present these statements and Dozier's, to the jury. The judge allowed him to ask questions of Agent Flamini about Dozier. The other statements were hearsay. Moseley did not understand the hearsay ruling which the judge had to explain hearsay. If Moseley had the witnesses present to testify, then he might be able to get their statements in before the jury. The judge ruled that he could not question Agent Flamini about any of those witnesses because they were hearsay. R. 414, ll. 18 - R. 417, ll. 25.

Moseley's mother, Gloria Smith, testified for the defense. She confirmed that Moseley was mentally ill and had been in and out of mental hospitals. She said that he was mentally ill now. She testified that he went to Philadelphia to live with her sister due to his illness in 2000 and returned in 2001. R. 374, ll. 18 –R. 376, ll. 10.

Moseley testified in his own behalf. R. 470, ll. 22 – R. 495, ll. 25. He told the jury that he received SSI disability. R. 489, ll. 1 – 25. When asked about the crime, Moseley said that he was not there. R. 463, ll. 12 – R. 495, ll. 12; R. 481, ll. 1 – R. 482, ll. 21.

Moseley called Investigator Shannon Coker. When Moseley asked him if during his investigation he learned of anybody leaving the scene with a bloody shirt who had braids and gold teeth, the state objected to hearsay. An in-camera hearing was held. Investigator Coker said there was nothing in his notes about that. Moseley produced statement that a person named Ijel York gave to Shannon Coker on October 30, 2001. In this statement, Ijel York stated that she was at the victim's house on the day he was killed. Several men were there arguing with the victim about money. "Little D" (David Brockington), who was the

person allegedly robbed by Tory York of drugs and money, drove up in his green expedition. Ijel left to get her hair done. As she was on her way back, she heard shots coming from Thorn Street where the victim lived. Then she saw the green expedition pass by on Thorn Street. She also was present later when she heard Andy White say he saw Tony York with blood on his shirt. Investigator Coker never talked to Andy White. R. 450, ll. 1 – R. 458, ll. 19.

The judge said all of this by Ijel York was hearsay and could not come in. Moseley did not understand why it was hearsay. The judge said that if Ijel York was present, Moseley could ask her these questions, but he could not get it in through this witness. R. 459, ll. 11 – R. 460, ll. 25.

The state called a reply witness, Lewellyn Jordan, who was a police officer in Florence in March 2001. He stopped Moseley on March 17, 2001 for driving 65 mph in a 45 mph zone. He was arrested and taken to the Florence County Detention Center for driving while his license was suspended. Mr. Jordan presented no evidence as to how long Moseley was incarcerated. R. 496, ll. 8 –R. 507, ll. 24.

When the judge decided to confer with the attorneys on the proposed jury charges, Moseley asked:

What do you mean exactly by charges, sir?

R. 510, ll. 1 – R. 512, ll. 1.

The judge then explained jury charges. R. 511, ll. 7 –R. 512, ll. 1.

After closing arguments, the judge clarified his ruling on Moseley's motion to dismiss for delay in the trial. The judge considered the factors as stated in Barker v. Wingo,

407 U.S. 514 (1972): length of the delay, reason for the delay, Moseley's assertion of his right, and prejudice to the defendant. The judge's ruling was:

Number One, length of the delay. In this particular instance, it's been six, almost seven years post-indictment. The reasons for the delay based on my review of the evidence, Mr. Barr did ask for a continuance when the case was called for trial in late 2007. After that, according to Ms. Kimberly Barr, the defendant did not appear. Bench warrants were issued. Mr. Moseley asserted his right to a speedy trial, he claims, in 2006, but it's hard to try somebody if he can't be located. Any prejudice that may have resulted to Mr. Moseley was a result of his own, perhaps not intentional delay, but absencing himself from the authority of the court. I just wanted to place that on the record.

R. 552, ll. 13 – R. 553, ll. 4.

Moseley told the court that he had no knowledge of Attorney Barr asking for a continuance because Moseley filed a speedy trial motion in 2006. He was at his house in White Oak during the time of the bench warrants. R.551, ll. 1 – 25.

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