ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

---

Appeal from Williamsburg County  
The Honorable George C. James, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

RECEIVED

Appellate Case No. 2014-000199

JAN 28 2016

SC Court of Appeals

---

THE STATE,

Respondent,

vs.

ARTHUR MOSELEY,

Appellant.

---

**FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT**

---

ALAN WILSON  
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH  
Chief Deputy Attorney General

DONALD J. ZELENKA  
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

WILLIAM EDGAR SALTER, III  
Senior Assistant Attorney General  
S.C. Bar No. 4806

Post Office Box 11549  
Columbia, South Carolina 29211  
(803) 734-6305

ERNEST FINNEY, III

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

However, the South Carolina Supreme Court, in *Barnes*, rejected the State’s argument that South Carolina should adopt the more stringent standard approved by the United States Supreme Court in *Edwards*, particularly where the defendant was facing a possible death sentence for murder. The defendant in *Barnes* requested that counsel be relieved and that he be allowed to appear *pro se*. *Barnes*, 407 S.C. at 31, 753 S.E.2d at 547. So, the trial judge conducted a *Faretta* waiver hearing, which included expert testimony of a defense psychologist that even though Barnes was competent to stand trial, his lengthy history of mental illness prevented him from making a knowing and intelligent waiver of his right to counsel. *Id.* at 31-34, 753 S.E.2d at 547-49.

Relying upon the expert opinion of this defense psychologist, the trial judge in *Barnes* concluded that Barnes had not knowingly and intelligently waived his right to counsel because he did not have “a clear understanding of the dangers of self-representation in the guilt nor the sentencing phase of the trial,” and because he did “not knowingly [and] intelligently understand the dangers inherent in self-representation.” *Id.* at 34, 753 S.E.2d at 549. On direct appeal, Barnes asserted that the trial judge had erred by requiring a different standard for competency to waive his right to counsel from the competency standard set forth in *Dusky*.

A majority of the South Carolina Supreme Court agreed and, rejecting the State’s arguments, expressly declined to adopt the more stringent standard set forth in *Edwards*:

---

<sup>6</sup> The Court in *Edwards* declined to adopt a federal constitutional competency standard. *Id.* at 178, 128 S.Ct. at 2388.

We decline to impose a higher competency standard upon an individual who wishes to waive his right to an attorney and represent himself at trial than that required for the waiver of other fundamental constitutional rights afforded a criminal defendant, such as the right against compulsory self-incrimination; the right to trial by jury; and the right to confront one's accusers. *See Boykin v. Alabama*, 395 U.S. 238, 89 S.Ct. 1709, 23 L.Ed.2d 274 (1969). A defendant who is competent to stand trial is also competent to waive these fundamental rights and plead guilty. *Sims v. State*, 313 S.C. 420, 438 S.E.2d 253 (1993). We do not find public policy supports a distinction between a defendant who wishes to plead guilty and the defendant who wishes to proceed to trial as the Sixth Amendment guarantees every criminal defendant the “right to proceed *without* counsel when he voluntarily and intelligently elects to do so.” *Faretta*, 422 U.S. at 807, 95 S.Ct. 2525.

*Barnes*, 407 S.C. 27, 36, 753 S.E.2d 545, 550 (2014).

Thus, when the South Carolina Supreme Court has previously refused to adopt the more stringent standard permitted by *Edwards* in a capital case involving a defendant with a similar mental health history, it would be error for this Court to conclude that Appellant’s history of mental illness rendered his waiver of his right to counsel unintelligent or unknowing, since he was competent to stand trial. *Id.* Additionally, Respondent submits that his efforts to distinguish his case from *Barnes* are without merit, as the above discussion makes clear. Therefore, Appellant’s first argument lacks merit.

**II. Appellant’s claim of a Sixth Amendment speedy trial violation is not properly before this Court on appeal because it was not raised at trial, and the trial judge did not abuse his discretion by denying Appellant’s motion to dismiss for violation of the federal Speedy Trial Act because that act does not apply to state court prosecutions.**

Appellant’s remaining contention is that he was denied his right to a speedy trial under the Sixth Amendment and *Barker v. Wingo*, 407 U.S. 514, 530, 92 S.Ct. 2182 (1972). However, his Sixth Amendment speedy trial argument is not properly before this Court on appeal because it was not raised at trial. Further, the trial judge did not abuse his discretion by denying Appellant’s argument that the Speedy Trial Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 3161–3174, had been violated because that Act does not apply to state court prosecutions.

**A. Appellant's motion in the trial judge's ruling.**

The trial judge allowed Appellant to raise his pretrial motions after jury selection. He first argued his motion to dismiss. He maintained that he had “documentation” and “proof of innocence” in addition to the motion to dismiss because, in his opinion, other persons could have committed the offense or knew who committed the offense, and because he had not known of any investigation by the federal government. **Tr. pp. 99-100; R. pp. 56-57.**

In support of his motion to dismiss based on the lack of a speedy trial, he asserted that he had been prejudiced by three-year delay, and that he had not waived his right to a trial by trial counsel's motion for continuance at the January 21, 2014 hearing. He observed that he had attempted to assert his speedy trial motion in April 2013 but his then-counsel, Ms. Shuler, did not bring into the trial court's attention. **Tr. pp. 100-01; R. pp. 57-58.** The trial judge correctly explained to Appellant that “[f]ederal law doesn't apply.” Appellant, however, insisted it did because of the Fourteenth Amendment. **Tr. p. 101; R. p. 58.**

Because Appellant digressed into his motion to dismiss based on supposedly “exculpatory” statements by witnesses in the case, (**Tr. pp. 102-04; R. pp. 59-61**), the trial judge asked him if his motion to dismiss was based upon the eyewitnesses' statements. In his response, Appellant clearly stated that he was asserting a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 3161(b) and (c), which are part of the Speedy Trial Act. Specifically, he argued that he had not been indicted within thirty days of his arrest, in accordance with § 3161(b). Rather, he was indicted approximately eighteen months after his arrest. He also was not tried within seventy days of indictment, which he asserted was required by § 3161(c). He claimed that neither of these violations was his fault, and he cited to a number of cases applying the Speedy Trial Act, or similar state court

provisions, such as *People v. Healy*, 293 Ill.App.3d 684, 688 N.E.2d 786 (1998). **Tr. pp. 104-05; 107; R. pp. 61-62, 64.**

Appellant further maintained that the continuances in his case had not complied with the Speedy Trial Act, and that his original trial attorney, Mr. Barr, was relieved as counsel because of a conflict of interest based on the fact that Mr. Barr was related to Assistant Solicitor Barr. Assistant Solicitor Bar denied that she and Mr. Barr were related and she denied that he had been relieved based upon his relationship to her. Instead, Mr. Barr moved to be relieved because Appellant had failed to comply with the terms of his retainer. **Tr. pp. 107-09; R. pp. 64-66.**

Appellant noted that he had sued both Judge Newman and the Assistant Solicitor because they had denied him his rights under the Speedy Trial Act. **Tr. pp. 109-10; R. pp. 66-67.** Then, the following exchange occurred between Appellant and the trial judge:

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. The government should never rely on the defendant's unilateral waiver of his rights **under the act**. The government must make sure the judge enters an ends of justice continuance and sets forth his reasons for doing so, see U.S. case Northern v. U.S. 9<sup>th</sup> Circuit, 1972. The defendant did ask for copies of speedy trial motions, trial motions from former private counsel, et cetera. The speedy trial act in U.S. case James Rogers Sikes vs. Superior Court 1973, sites Jones v. Superior Court, defendant's rights should likewise not be spiteful by the neglect of those officially concerned. Also, citing the only duty placed upon an accused in protecting his right to a speedy trial is to object when his trial is set forth for the date beyond the **statutory** period.

THE COURT: So ... you say the case should be dismissed because you were tried not in a speedy fashion?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir, that also, sir.

THE COURT: All right.

THE DEFENDANT: Then move to dismiss once that period expires or merely move to dismiss if the statutory period expires by trial date

being set. The petitioner done this and more, although not required of him to perfect his speedy trial claim, petitioner, in fact, repeatedly attempted to remind the authorities of his status and of the need of his speedy trial and no circumstances which suggest that he waived his right to a speedy trial. The risk of clerical error or neglect on the part of those charged with official action must [rest] with the people not with the defendant in a criminal case. That's U.S. case Plezberg vs. Superior Court, 1971. U. S. case -- vs. North Carolina, 1966, clearly cites the right to a speedy trial is a fundamental right secured by the Sixth Amendment to the federal constitution --

THE COURT: I understand ... your right to a speedy trial.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: How ... has that been violated, if you can explain that to me?

THE DEFENDANT: It has been violated through the presumption of ... prejudice that I presented with State v. Maryland. The Feds investigated this case from 2003 to 2006 and did not inquire any of this, sir. They did not -- that's -- I presented that in **3161(b)**, the indictment was 14 months or 18 months later, **3161(c)** --

**Tr. p. 110, line 7 – p. 112, line 2; R. p. 67, line 7 – p. 69, line 2** (emphasis added).

At that point, the Assistant Solicitor explained that Appellant was indicted in July 2007. She did not know the precise reason for the five year delay between the time of his arrest and his indictment, but she stated that the file “would seem to suggest that initially there was a belief that Steve ‘Rab’ Singletary was the person who committed the crime. And then later investigations by the Federal Bureau of Investigation and [information supplied by] some inmates who were in federal custody as a result of continued investigation, it was determined that Mr. Moseley was the one that committed the murder.” **Tr. p. 112; R. p. 69.**

With the trial judge’s permission, Appellant resumed his argument. He cited a number of cases involving the Speedy Trial Act, and he moved “for a dismissal of [this] frivolous charge”

for violation of his right to speedy trial. He also cited to “South Carolina rules of criminal procedure Rule 48 granting the trial court discretion to dismiss cases that are not brought to trial promptly,” as a basis for dismissal of the charges against him. **Tr. pp. 113-14; R. pp. 70-71.**<sup>7</sup>

Thereafter, the Assistant Solicitor explained that Appellant’s original counsel, Mr. Barr, was originally given notice that the case was ready for trial in December 2007. However, the case was continued at trial counsel’s request. The Assistant Solicitor added that “the clerk’s record should reflect that in 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2012 bench warrants were issued against [Appellant] ... for failure to appear.” His failure to appear “hampered our ability to bring the case forward for trial because a lot of judges understandably are hesitant to try a defendant in his absence when he’s charged with the offense of murder.” **Tr. p. 116; R. p. 73. See also Tr. pp. 122-23; R. pp. 79-80.**

In response to the judge’s query about the bench warrants, the Assistant Solicitor stated that:

I know for sure Judge Cochran issued a bench warrant on May 7, 2007. Judge Milling issued a bench warrant on March 12<sup>th</sup> of 2008. Your Honor issued a bench warrant on March 13<sup>th</sup> of 2009. And Judge Newman issued a bench warrant in October 2012. And I believe there may be another bench warrant contained within the clerk’s file.

**Tr. p. 117; R. p. 74.** Appellant was arrested in either late December 2012 early in January 2013.

**Tr. p. 117; R. p. 74.**

While the Assistant Solicitor did not clearly understand when Appellant claimed that he had first filed a motion for speedy trial, she explained that he had written her “a couple of times” about the fact he had yet been evaluated for his competency and criminal responsibility. She stated that he had, in fact, been evaluated for competency and criminal responsibility on August

---

<sup>7</sup> The South Carolina Rules of Criminal Procedure do not contain a Rule 48. Apparently his citation was to Rule 48(b), F.R.C.P.

28, 2013; that reports were issued in September 2013; and that, in light of the evaluations, Judge Newman had found that Appellant was competent to stand trial and criminally responsible, at the January 21, 2014 pretrial hearing. She further informed the trial judge that Judge Newman had already found that Appellant “was capable of representing himself pursuant to [*Faretta*].” **Tr. pp. 117-19; R. pp. 74-76.**

Minutes later, the Assistant Solicitor again addressed the present issue. She noted that Mr. Barr had some health problems in late 2012, and that he was thereafter relieved as counsel on January 29, 2013. She confirmed that Appellant had sued her, but she stated that the district court had dismissed the case without service of process on the defendants, and that the appellate court had dismissed Appellant’s appeal of that order on January 24, 2014. **Tr. pp. 123-24; R. pp. 80-81.**

Again, Appellant disputed the Assistant Solicitor’s representations about the bench warrants, and he asserted that there had “only been one technical bench warrant placed on me ... until October 29, 2012, sir.” On October 29<sup>th</sup>, he was admitted to Carolina Hospital and therefore missed a roll call of which he was unaware. This resulted in issuance of a bench warrant, and he had been incarcerated since his arrest on that warrant. He conceded that he “was messed up” in October 2012 and was not capable of going to trial at that point. He claimed that the State could not produce the other bench warrants at issue. He further claimed that the State knew his address and that he had not been “on the run.” He had been in touch with Mr. Barr during the five years in question, but he, again, stated that he had not consented to a continuance. **Tr. pp. 124-27; R. pp. 81-84.**

Appellant indicated that he understood the trial judge’s explanation that the dispute about whether bench warrants were wrongfully entered against him was a civil dispute that did not

have anything to do with present charges, and he reiterated that he had not consented to any continuance. He further represented that he had made his motion for speedy trial in April 2013 and, again, in July 2013. However, his attorney failed to file any of his motions. **Tr. pp. 128-29; R. pp. 85-86.**

The trial judge stated that he would consider the matter over a luncheon recess. **Tr. p. 129; R. p. 86.** When court resumed, the trial judge denied Appellant's motion, as follows:

All right. I've reviewed the materials provided to me by Mr. Moseley, also, considered his arguments and, also, Ms. Barr's arguments. Mr. Moseley's motion to dismiss all of the charges is denied. I accept -- first of all, I accept Ms. Barr's explanation about the bench warrants as her role as an officer of the court. The -- any delay, first of all, post-indictment was result of a request made by Mr. Moseley's attorneys or attorney, obviously, acting in his behalf at the time after the initial trial date in 2007 or 2008 was continued by the request of Mr. Verdell Barr. Mr. Moseley absented himself from the proceedings by virtue of not appearing and bench warrants were issued.

**Tr. p. 130, line 18 -- p. 131, line 5; R. p. 87, line 18 -- p. 88, line 5.**

Following this ruling, the trial judge stated that he wanted to ensure that all exculpatory material in the State's possession, or the possession of law enforcement, had been disclosed. The Assistant Solicitor stated that she had a list of forty-two items that had been disclosed, forty-one of which were disclosed to Mr. Barr in 2007. These same documents and the list were disclosed, again, to Ms. Shuler and the list was provided to Ms. Butcher. Appellant had left a detailed message on her voice mail detailing certain things that he did not have and he also referenced these items during the pretrial hearing. So, the Assistant Solicitor agreed to disclose the items if they were in her file. **Tr. pp. 131-32; R. pp. 88-89.**

#### **B. Discussion.**

Initially, Respondent submits that Appellant's argument that the trial judge erroneously denied his motion to dismiss based upon a violation of his Sixth Amendment right to a speedy

trial under *Barker*<sup>8</sup> is not properly before this court because it was not raised at trial. As demonstrated, Appellant did not argue in the trial court that his Sixth Amendment right to speedy

---

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